
 

 
AGENDA                            August 25, 2021 

  - 1 -  

ORANGE COUNTY  
CONTINUUM OF CARE BOARD 
Wednesday, August 25, 2021  

2 p.m.  – 4 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
                                         

 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

Board Members 
 

Jeanne Awrey, OC Dept. of Education  
Matt Bates, City Net 
Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana  
Natalie Bui, Veteran Affairs CRRC 
Donald Dermit, The Rock Church 
Becks Heyhoe, OC United Way [Secretary] 
Tim Houchen, Hope4Restoration  
Patti Long, Mercy House    

Dawn Price, Friendship Shelter  
Albert Ramirez, City of Anaheim 
Maricela Rios-Faust, Human Options [Vice Chair] 
Soledad Rivera, Families Together of OC  
George Searcy, Jamboree Housing  
Tim Shaw, Individual [Chair] 
Christina Weckerly Ramirez, Health Care Agency  

Call to Order – Tim Shaw, Chair   

Board Member Roll Call – Jocelyn Gaspar, Continuum of Care Specialist  

Public Comments: Members of the public may address the Continuum of Care (CoC) Board on items listed within 
this agenda or matters not appearing on the agenda so long as the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the 
CoC Board. Members of the public may address the CoC Board with public comments on agenda items in the 
business calendar after the CoC Board member discussion. Comments will be limited to three minutes. If there 
are more than five public speakers, this time will be reduced to two minutes. 

To address the CoC Board, members of the public are to enter their name and agenda item number in the WebEx 
chat box to be placed in a queue. CoC Board staff will call your name in the order listed in the chat box.  

CONSENT CALENDAR  
All matters are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board Member for discussion or separate action. 
The CoC Board requests that only pertinent information be discussed during this time. 
 
1. Approve Continuum of Care Board Meeting Minutes from July 28, 2021. 

 

Webinar:  
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78

381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480    

Dial by Phone:  
+1 (213) 306-3065 

Access Code:  
177 169 0705 

 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 1

https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480


 

 
AGENDA                            August 25, 2021 

  - 2 -  

BUSINESS CALENDAR 

1. Orange County Continuum of Care (CoC) Update – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager   

2. FY2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager, and 
CoC NOFO Ad Hoc  

a. Update on the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO and Ad Hoc 
b. Approve the Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO  

 
3. Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) Committee Recommendations – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager, and 

Maricela Rios-Faust, Vice Chair   
a. Receive and file the CoC Needs Assessment Overview.   
b. Approve the creation of an Ad Hoc that evaluates the request to establish a data-sharing mechanism 

between Outreach Grid and the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). The Ad Hoc will 
return with a recommendation to the PPS Committee to assist with next steps.  

 
4. State of California Homelessness Funding Sources – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager  

a. Update on the Homeless, Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round 3 funding for the Orange 
County CoC provided by the State of California Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency. 

b. Update on the 2021 Emergency Solutions Grant funding for the Orange County CoC provided by the 
State of California Housing and Community Development.  

5. Emergency Housing Voucher Update – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager and Doug Becht, Director of Operations, 
Office of Care Coordination  

6. Orange County System of Care Update – Doug Becht, Director of Operations, Office of Care Coordination  

Next Meeting: Wednesday, September 22, 2021, from 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. 
 

 
 

 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 2



 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 1 -  

ORANGE COUNTY  
CONTINUUM OF CARE BOARD 

Wednesday, July 28, 2021  
2 p.m.  – 4 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
                                         

 
 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

Board Members 
 

Jeanne Awrey, OC Dept. of Education  
Matt Bates, City Net 
Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana  
Natalie Bui, Veteran Affairs CRRC 
Donald Dermit, The Rock Church 
Becks Heyhoe, OC United Way [Secretary] 
Tim Houchen, Hope4Restoration  
Patti Long, Mercy House    

Dawn Price, Friendship Shelter  
Albert Ramirez, City of Anaheim 
Maricela Rios-Faust, Human Options [Vice Chair] 
Soledad Rivera, Families Together of OC  
George Searcy, Jamboree Housing  
Tim Shaw, Individual [Chair] 
Christina Weckerly Ramirez, Health Care Agency  

Call to Order – Tim Shaw, Chair   

Chair Tim Shaw called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. 

Board Member Roll Call – Becks Heyhoe, Secretary 

Present: Jeanne Awrey, Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Natalie Bui, Donald Dermit, Becks Heyhoe, Tim Houchen, Patti 
Long, Albert Ramirez, Maricela Rios-Faust, Soledad Rivera, George Searcy, Tim Shaw, and Christina Weckerly-
Ramirez.  

Absent Excused: Dawn Price  

Judson Brown was excused from the meeting during Business Calendar Agenda Item 1 and did not vote on 
Business Calendar Agenda Items 3 to 7. 

Public Comments: Members of the public may address the Continuum of Care (CoC) Board on items listed within 
this agenda or matters not appearing on the agenda so long as the subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the 
CoC Board. Members of the public may address the CoC Board with public comments on agenda items in the 
business calendar after the CoC Board member discussion. Comments will be limited to three minutes. If there 
are more than five public speakers, this time will be reduced to two minutes. 

Webinar:  
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78

381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480    

Dial by Phone:  
+1 (213) 306-3065 

Access Code:  
177 169 0705 

 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 3

https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480
https://ocgov.webex.com/ocgov/j.php?MTID=m78381b0705d5cda70df63e3c20e22480


 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 2 -  

To address the CoC Board, members of the public are to enter their name and agenda item number in the WebEx 
chat box to be placed in a queue. CoC Board staff will call your name in the order listed in the chat box.  

• Callie Rutter recommended clients in Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) have access to their 
own information.  

CONSENT CALENDAR  
All matters are approved by one motion unless pulled by a Board Member for discussion or separate action. 
The CoC Board requests that only pertinent information be discussed during this time. 
 
1. Approve Continuum of Care Board Meeting Minutes from June 23, 2021. 

2. Approve Continuum of Care Board Special Meeting Minutes from July 15, 2021. 

Tim Houchen motioned to approve the items on the Consent Calendar. Vice Chair Maricela Rios-Faust 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous consent. 

BUSINESS CALENDAR 

1. Orange County System of Care Update – Doug Becht, Director of Operations, Office of Care Coordination  

a. Project Roomkey – The Office of Care Coordination continues to operate Project Roomkey for 
individuals experiencing homelessness who are COVID-19 sick or symptomatic. Referrals into the 
Project Roomkey are made by the Public Health Services, hospitals, shelters, street outreach teams, 
and law enforcement. The total capacity to serve is 150 individuals.  

b. COVID-19 Vaccination Efforts – The Office of Care Coordination is working with the Public Health 
Services and two Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) on COVID-19 vaccination efforts for 
people experiencing homelessness. The FQHCs are Families Together of Orange County in Tustin 
and Share Our Selves in Costa Mesa.  

c. State of California Budget Homelessness Funding – The State of California budget places focus on 
addressing the housing and homelessness crisis in California making available approximately $12 
billion in new funding over the next two years. The four primary sources of homelessness funding 
include Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 3, HHAP Program 
Round 4, Encampment Resolutions Funding Programs, Family Homelessness Challenge Grants and 
Technical Assistance.  

Public Comments  
• Brooke Weitzman asked what data exists on the outcomes of congregate and non-congregate 

shelters. Brooke Weitzman also asked how people experiencing homelessness access the system 
when there are no street outreach providers in their city.  

• Pat Davis asked about encampment resolutions.  
• David Duran agreed with Brooke Weitzman and recommended looking at the workforce that provides 

street outreach services for people experiencing unsheltered homelessness.  
 

2. Orange County Continuum of Care (CoC) Update – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager   

a. Alternative Shelter Placement Update – The Letters of Agreement for the provision of Alternative 
Shelter Placement ended June 30, 2021. A total of 25,380 alternative shelter nights were provided 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 4



 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 3 -  

through this program to individuals at high-risk of severe COVID-19 illness and unsheltered families 
since the program was implemented.  

b. Ad Hoc and Working Group Updates – The Longitudinal System Analysis (LSA) Ad Hoc has been 
temporarily paused given the number ongoing ad hocs in place. The Office of Care Coordination 
recommends it its best to focus on the ad hocs with pending deadlines and priorities to balance 
the participation required from the CoC Board members. The Vision Ad Hoc has completed its first 
draft of the vision for the CoC Board and will present the initial draft to the CoC Board in August or 
September 2021. The HMIS Access Working Group members are currently reviewing 
approximately 14 HMIS Access applications and will be making determinations in the coming 
weeks.  

c. Outreach Grid and HMIS – The North Orange County Safety Task Force is currently utilizing 
Outreach Grid for its street outreach efforts and is interested in exploring a data-sharing 
mechanism with HMIS. A representative from the North Orange County Safety Task Force will be 
making a presentation at the upcoming Policy, Procedures and Standards Committee meeting on 
Tuesday, August 10, 2021. 

d. Orange County CoC Needs Assessment Findings – The MDG technical assistance team will present 
the Orange County CoC needs assessment findings and share recommendations that support 
improved outcomes for people experiencing homelessness in Orange County. All CoC partners are 
invited to participate in the meeting on July 30, 2021, and share any feedback on the 
recommendations provided.  

Public Comments  
• Brooke Weitzman commented on Outreach Grid, noted that it is utilized by law enforcement and 

highlighted that HMIS does not allow law enforcement. Brooke Weitzman noted that the CoC 
Board should consider those implications for potential HIPAA violations.  

• Callie Rutter shared an experience about a friend that was having difficulty finding shelter 
placement as the person did not want to have an interaction with law enforcement.  
 

3. Racial Equity Analysis Provider Recommendation – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager  
a. The CoC Board directed the Office of Care Coordination to identify a consultant to conduct a racial 

disparities and equity evaluation of CoC systems and processes. C4 Innovations offers strategic 
options for the Orange County CoC to increase the knowledge and capacity around racial equity and 
transform the homeless response system to promote equitable outcomes. The contract will be 
funded by the state HHAP Round 1 grant funding allocated to the Orange County CoC and the 
Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus (ESG-CV) Grant.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve C4 Innovations as the recommended consultant to conduct a Racial 
Equity Analysis of the Orange County Continuum of Care.  
 
Chair Tim Shaw motioned to approve the recommended action. Becks Heyhoe seconded the motion. 
The motion passed by unanimous consent.  
 

Public Comments  
• Brooke Weitzman praised the recommended action and noted that there is already a racial equity 

mapping analysis within the County of Orange and the CoC Board should consider utilizing that 
data.  
 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 5



 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 4 -  

4. North Service Planning Area Request for Proposals (RFP) Recommendation – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager 
a. On March 24, 2021, the CoC Board approved Project C – COVID-19 Response Homeless Service 

Vendor recommendation for the North, Central and South Service Planning Area. The recommended 
vendor for Project C – COVID-19 Response Homeless Service for the North Service Planning Area did 
not end up moving forward in contracting or implementation. Approval of the recommended action 
will allow the release of the COVID-19 Homelessness Response Request For Proposal for the North 
Service Planning Area and make available up to $500,000 in HHAP Round 1 funding allocated to the 
Orange County CoC. The Office of Care Coordination is recommending the release the COVID-19 
Homelessness Response Request For Proposals for the North Service Planning Area noting that the 
selected vendor will coordinate and collaborate with the Homeless Outreach and Proactive 
Engagement (HOPE) Center being developed by the North Orange County Public Safety Task Force.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve the release of the COVID-19 Homelessness Response Request For 
Proposals for the North Service Planning Area.  
 
George Searcy motioned to approve the recommended action. Becks Heyhoe seconded the motion. 
Matt Bates, Natalie Bui, Donald Dermit, Becks Heyhoe, Tim Houchen, Patti Long, Albert Ramirez, and 
Christina Weckerly-Ramirez voted No. Maricela Rios-Faust and George Searcy voted Yes. Tim Shaw 
abstained. Jeanne Awrey, Judson Brown and Soledad Rivera did not vote. The motion did not pass.  
 

5. FY2021 CoC Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Update – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager  
a. The annual CoC NOFO Competition has not been released by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) but is anticipated to be released soon. The Office of Care Coordination will be 
releasing the Agency Administrative Review and Letter of Intent shortly after the release of the CoC 
NOFO on BidSync. The CoC NOFO Ad Hoc met on July 6 and July 20, 2021, to evaluate project 
performance, funding priorities, establish policies for reallocation and program priority list. The CoC 
NOFO Ad Hoc and the Office of Care Coordination will be meeting with the CoC Funded Executive 
Directors to review the CoC NOFO Ad Hoc’s recommendations and gather feedback before presenting 
the recommendations to the CoC Board.  
 

6. CoC Board Nominating Committee – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager 
a. On May 26, 2021, the CoC Board approved the establishing of a Nominating Committee to review the 

CoC Board membership and election process. The Nominating Committee is responsible for recruiting 
candidates, confirming candidate’s willingness to serve and reviewing the qualifications of candidates 
in collaboration with the Collaborative Applicant. Approval of the recommended action will also 
support the Orange County CoC in updating its process to be reflective of feedback and lessons 
learned from the 2020 process, as well as expanding and/or refining membership. 

 
Recommended Action: Appoint Patti Long, Elizabeth Andrade, David Gillanders, LeVal Brewer and 
Barry Ross to the CoC Board Nominating Committee as recommended by the CoC Board Chair, Tim 
Shaw.  
 
Becks Heyhoe motioned to approve the recommended action. Natalie Bui seconded the motion. Matt 
Bates, Natalie Bui, Donald Dermit, Becks Heyhoe, Tim Houchen, Albert Ramirez, Maricela Rios-Faust, 
George Searcy, Tim Shaw and Christina Weckerly Ramirez voted Yes. Jeanne Awrey, Judson Brown 
and Soledad Rivera did not vote. Patti Long abstained. The motion passed. 

 
7. Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council (HCFC) COVID-19 Emergency Homelessness Funding 

Recommendation – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 6



 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 5 -  

a. In April 2020, the Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council (HCFC) made available COVID-19 
Emergency Homelessness funding. The Orange County CoC received a total allocation of 
$1,336,888.52. The Office of Care Coordination, as the CoC Administrative Entity, was able to 
maximize other funding sources with shorter expenditure timeframes by covering the costs of the 
Alternative Shelter Placement Program. This has resulted in a cost-savings of approximately $700,000 
in COVID-19 Emergency Homelessness Funding. The recent delays in the approval of the State of 
California’s budget have impacted the ongoing operations of the Housing and Disability Advocacy 
Program (HDAP) in Orange County. Approval of the recommended action will allow the current HDAP 
service providers to continue providing services to currently enrolled participants without disrupting 
the case management and support being provided towards securing long-term benefits and 
permanent housing.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve the utilization of Homeless Coordinating and Financing Council 
(HCFC) COVID-19 Emergency Homelessness Funding to provide short-term funding support for the 
Housing and Disability Advocacy Program. 
 
Tim Houchen motioned to approve the recommended action. Vice Chair Maricela Rio-Faust seconded 
the motion. Natalie Bui, Becks Heyhoe, Tim Houchen, Albert Ramirez, Maricela Rios-Faust, George 
Searcy, Tim Shaw and Christina Weckerly Ramirez voted Yes. Jeanne Awrey, Donald Dermit, and 
Soledad Rivera Did not vote. Matt Bates and Patti Long abstained. The motion passed. 
 

Public Comments  
• Nikki Buckstead noted that the funding for Alternative Shelter Placements Program has ended for 

families and advocated for additional funding for families.  
 

8. Emergency Housing Voucher Update – Zulima Lundy, CoC Manager and Doug Becht, Director of Operations, 
Office of Care Coordination 

a. Zulima Lundy shared update of the Emergency Housing Vouchers memorandum of understanding 
with the four public housing authorities in Orange County. In addition, Doug Becht shared details on 
the supportive service providers that will be supporting the Orange County Housing Authority with 
securing permanent housing and providing housing stabilization services. These include Mercy House, 
People Assisting The Homeless (PATH), Family Solutions Collaborative, Human Options, and Orange 
County’s United Way will provide supportive services to support individuals, families, and victims of 
domestic violence. The Anaheim Housing Authority and Santa Ana Housing Authority provided a short 
update about their plan for supportive services.  
 

Public Comments  
• Callie Rutter recommended that supportive services be provided for a minimum of two years given 

the continued services needed for clients.  
• David Gillanders noted his excitement for the Emergency Housing Voucher program and agreed with 

Callie Rutter’s comments noting that there should be comprehensive supportive services for clients. 
David Gillanders also recommended there be some level of oversite or monitoring of landlords to 
prevent landlord discrimination.  

 
9. CoC Board Committee Updates  

a. Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) Committee:  
i. The PPS Committee Chair, Maricela-Rios Faust, shared an update from the July meeting. The 

PPS Committee approved the proposed HMIS Policies and Procedures annual review process, 
including establishing a schedule and review process for the HMIS Policies and Procedures 
with the proposed composition of the working group. In addition, the PPS Committee 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 7



 

 
MINUTES                            July 28, 2021 

  - 6 -  

approved Natalie Bui as the Coordinated Entry System Committee representative of the PPS 
Committee. 
 

b. Lived Experience Advisory Committee:  
i. The Lived Experience Advisory Committee Chair, Tim Houchen noted that the members of 

the committee have been identified and confirmed. Tim Houchen and the Lived Experience 
Advisory Committee members are looking forward for the first meeting that will be scheduled 
in August or September.  
 

c. Housing Opportunities Committee:  
i. The Housing Opportunities Chair, Judson Brown noted that the next Housing Opportunities 

Committee meeting is scheduled for August 13, 2021, at 10 am. The meeting will review the 
2021 Housing Inventory Count, will share updates on the Emergency Housing Vouchers, 
project-based initiatives, tenant-based initiates, and county-wide performance metric 
updates.  

 
Meeting adjourned: 4:03 p.m.  

 
Next Meeting: Wednesday, August 25, 2021, from 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. 

 
 
 

 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 8



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 2 

 

Date: August 25, 2021 

Subject: FY2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO)  

Recommended Action:  

a. Update on the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO and Ad Hoc 
b. Approve the Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO  

 
Background: 

a. Update on the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO and Ad Hoc 
On May 26, 2021, the Orange County CoC Board approved the creation of an ad hoc to support with the 
local competitive process to evaluate renewal project performance, establish funding priorities for new and 
reallocated funding, establish policies for reallocation and rating and tiering. The CoC NOFO Ad Hoc is 
comprised of non-conflicted members of the CoC Board and will be tasked with providing unbiased 
recommendations to the CoC Board around the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO. The COC NOFO Ad Hoc 
membership includes George Searcy, Matt Bates, and Natalie Bui.  

The CoC NOFO Ad Hoc has met twice to discuss project performance measures, including threshold and 
point along, and the rating and ranking criteria for renewal permanent housing projects – rapid rehousing 
and permanent supportive housing projects. This has included discussion on better understanding the 
incorporation of evidenced-based practices and participation in Coordinated Entry System for the various 
renewal projects. In an effort to receive feedback on the proposed project performance measures and the 
rating and ranking criteria, the CoC NOFO Ad Hoc participated in a join meeting with the Office of Care 
Coordination and the CoC Executive Directors. The final project performance measures and rating and 
ranking criteria will be presented to the Orange County CoC Board at a future meeting for approval.  

The FY2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) has been released 
by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) on August 18, 2021.  The FY2021 CoC 
program NOFO details the process for renewal and new projects and makes CoC Bonus and Domestic 
Violence (DV) Bonus funding available to the CoCs. Attachment A provides an overview of the FY2021 COC 
Program NOFO. The CoC NOFO Ad Hoc will be meeting to help establish funding priorities for new funding, 
including subpopulation focus, if any, and project types.   

The following information provides the estimated funding amounts available to the Orange County CoC 
during the FY 2021 CoC Program NOFo.  

• Preliminary Pro Ratet Needs (PPRN): $18,243,039 
• Orange County CoC Estimated Annual Renewal Demand (ARD): $28,231,737 
• CoC Bonus: $1,411,587 
• DV Bonus: $2,736,456 
• CoC Planning: $846,952 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 9



b. Approve the Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 CoC Program NOFO  
The Office of Care Coordination is recommending the Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 
CoC Program NOFO for approval to provide agencies with additional details and allow them to best prepare 
for next steps. Attachment B provides a detailed overview of the process and recommendations.   

 

Attachments 
Attachment A – Overview of the FY2021 COC NOFO 
Attachment B – Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 COC Program NOFO 
  

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 10



Item 2. Attachment A  

Notice of Funding Opportunity for Fiscal Year 2021 Continuum of Care Program 
Competition Overview 

 

Overview 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is awarding $2,656,000,000 in the Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO), including up to 
$102,000,000 available for Domestic Violence (DV) Bonus projects. The NOFO for the FY 2021 CoC Program 
Competition is available on Grants.gov and the Funding Opportunities page on HUD’s website. The 
submission deadline for the FY2021 COC NOFO is November 16, 2021.  

HUD Policy Priorities and Program Highlights  
 Supporting the goal of ending homelessness, CoC Program project applications will be reviewed with 

the following selection criteria in mind as outlined by HUD. Projects should focus on: 
 Ending homelessness for all persons: CoCs should identify, engage, and effectively serve all persons 

experiencing homelessness, using local data to determine the characteristics of individuals and 
families with the highest needs and longest experiences of homelessness and partnering with 
housing, health care, and supportive services providers to expand housing options. 

 Using a Housing First approach: CoC Program funded projects should help individuals and families 
move quickly into permanent housing. Projects should also engage landlords and property owners 
to identify an inventory of housing available for rapid rehousing and permanent supportive housing 
participants, remove barriers to entry, and adopt client-centered service methods. 

 Reducing unsheltered homelessness: CoCs should identify permanent housing options for people 
who are unsheltered. 

 Improving system performance: CoCs should be using system performance measures to determine 
how effectively they are serving people experiencing homelessness. Additionally, CoCs should use 
their Coordinated Entry process to promote participant choice, coordinate homeless assistance 
and mainstream housing, and services to ensure people experiencing homelessness receive 
assistance quickly, and make homelessness assistance open, inclusive, and transparent. 

 Partnering with Housing, Health, and Service Agencies: The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Security (CARES) Act and American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) have provided significant new 
resources to help end homelessness. To maximize the use of mainstream and other community-
based resources when serving persons experiencing homelessness, CoCs should work closely with 
public and private healthcare organizations, partner closely with public housing authorities (PHAs) 
and local housing agencies, partner with local workforce development centers and work with tribal 
organizations. 

 Advancing racial equity and addressing racial disparities in homelessness: CoCs should review local 
policies, procedures, and processes to determine where and how to address racial disparities 
affecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness. 

 Including persons with lived expertise in decision-making: HUD is encouraging CoCs to include in 
the local planning process people who are currently experiencing or have formerly experienced 
homelessness to address homelessness. 

Changes from Previous Notice of Funding Opportunities  
 Notable changes for the FY 2021 CoC NOFO include: 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 11

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=335322__;!!KL1yqyOaGX2drUI!0_SjPYM-3TC_B_eXdnaDe0XoPqPlEk09RDz1L-SK7C1T8DjyDnCf9ckwQmn0WqIT$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=335322__;!!KL1yqyOaGX2drUI!0_SjPYM-3TC_B_eXdnaDe0XoPqPlEk09RDz1L-SK7C1T8DjyDnCf9ckwQmn0WqIT$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/fy21_coc__;!!KL1yqyOaGX2drUI!0_SjPYM-3TC_B_eXdnaDe0XoPqPlEk09RDz1L-SK7C1T8DjyDnCf9ckwQoWE9Ub5$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/fy21_coc__;!!KL1yqyOaGX2drUI!0_SjPYM-3TC_B_eXdnaDe0XoPqPlEk09RDz1L-SK7C1T8DjyDnCf9ckwQoWE9Ub5$


 The return of the Housing First model to prioritize rapid placement and stabilization in permanent 
housing without service participation requirements or preconditions. 

 HUD will incentivize CoCs that create projects that coordinate with housing providers and 
healthcare organizations to provide permanent housing and rapid rehousing services. 

 HUD increased the number of points related to CoC coordination with PHAs to add PHA-funded 
units to CoC’s coordinated entry. 

 HUD revised its evaluation of racial disparity and increased number of points related to whether 
CoCs and homeless providers identified barriers that led to these disparities and have taken steps 
to eliminate these barriers to improve racial equity.  

 A new category added to promote inclusion of persons with lived experience within local planning 
processes and engagement with the CoC. 

 With the impact of COVID-19, points were added related to how CoCs addressed challenges 
resulting from the outbreak of COVID-19 affecting individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness, including increased calls due to domestic violence, the need for additional 
assistance related to mainstream benefits and other assistance, and changes needed to the CoC’s 
coordinated entry system. 

 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic most communities could not conduct an unsheltered count in 2021 
that is comparable to previous counts. For this year, HUD has determined that the sheltered count 
is a better reflection of overall changes of homelessness and is not evaluating unsheltered data in 
this year’s NOFO. However, HUD plans to measure sheltered and unsheltered populations in 2022. 

HUD Funding Process – Application Review and Ranking Process 
 Project applications submitted to the CoC will be reviewed and either accepted and ranked, approved, 

or rejected by the CoC.  
 HUD will continue the Tier 1 and 2 funding selection process. Higher ranked projects will be assigned 

to Tier 1 and lower ranked projects will be assigned to Tier 2. The purpose of this two-tiered approach 
is for CoCs to notify HUD which projects are prioritized for funding based on local needs and gaps.  

 HUD will establish each CoC’s Tier 1 and Tier 2 amounts based on the total amount of funds requested 
by eligible renewal project applications on the Renewal Project Listing combined with the eligible 
renewal project amount(s) that were reallocated as listed on the reallocation forms in the CoC Priority 
Listing. 

 Tier 1  
 Tier 1 is equal to 100% of the ARD: $28,231,727 
 Project applications in Tier 1 will be conditionally selected from the highest scoring CoC to the 

lowest scoring CoC, provided the project applications pass both project eligibility and project 
quality threshold review, and if applicable, project renewal threshold. Any type of new or renewal 
project application can be placed in Tier 1. 

 Tier 2 
 Tier 2 is equal to the CoC Bonus and DV Bonus amounts available: $4,148,043  
 Tier 2 is the difference between Tier 1 and the maximum amount of renewal, reallocation, and 

CoC Bonus funds that a CoC can apply for, CoC planning projects or projects selected with DV 
Bonus funds. 

 HUD will award a point value to each new and renewal project application that is in Tier 2 using a 
100-point scale: 
 CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC 

Application. 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 12



 CoC Project Ranking. Up to 40 points for the CoC’s ranking of the project application(s). To 
consider the CoCs ranking of projects, point values will be assigned directly related to the 
CoCs' ranking of project applications. The calculation of point values will be 50 times the 
quantity (1-x) where x is the ratio of the cumulative funding requests for all projects or 
portions of projects ranked higher by the CoC in Tier 2 plus one half of the funding of the 
project of interest to the total amount of funding available in Tier 2. 

 Commitment to Housing First. Up to 10 points based on the project application’s 
commitment to follow a housing first approach. Dedicated HMIS projects and centralized 
or coordinated assessment system SSO projects will automatically receive 10 points. 

 Straddling Tiers 
 If a project application straddles the Tier 1 and Tier 2 funding line, HUD will conditionally select 

the project up to the amount of funding that falls within Tier 1. Using the 100-point scale value 
described above, HUD may fund Tier 2 portion of the project. If HUD does not fund the Tier 2 
portion of the project, HUD may award the project at the reduced amount, provided the project 
is still feasible with reduced funding.  

Opportunities for New Funding  
 CoC Bonus  
 Funding available: $1,411,587  
 New projects created through reallocation or CoC Bonus processes include: 

 Permanent housing-permanent supportive housing (PH-PSH) projects.  
 Permanent housing-rapid rehousing (PH-RRH) projects.  
 Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects.  
 Dedicated HMIS project for the costs at 24 CFR 578.37(a)(4) that can only be carried out 

by the HMIS Lead, which is the recipient or subrecipient of an HMIS grant and is listed on 
the HMIS Lead form in the CoC Applicant Profile in e-snaps. Additionally, if the CoC has 
organizations within its geographic area that are victim service providers, the HMIS Lead, 
or subrecipient, may request HMIS funds for a comparable database. Victim service 
providers may also request HMIS funds in their project application budgets to enter data 
into a comparable database.  

 Supportive services only coordinated entry (SSO-CE) project to develop or operate a 
centralized or coordinated assessment system. 

 DV Bonus 
 Funding available: $2,736,456  
 HUD will award a point value to each project application combining both the CoC Application score 

and responses to the domestic violence bonus specific questions in the CoC Application using the 
following 100-point scale: 
 Rapid Rehousing and Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects:  

 CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC 
Application.  

 Need for the Project. Up to 25 points based on the extent the CoC quantifies the 
need for the project in its portfolio, the extent of need, and how the project will 
fill that gap.  

 Quality of the Project Applicant. Up to 25 points based on the previous 
performance of the applicant in serving survivors of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their ability to house survivors and meet 
safety outcomes. 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 13



 SSO Projects for Coordinated Entry to implement policies, procedures, and practices that
equip the CoC’s coordinated entry to better meet the needs of people experiencing
homelessness who are survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking (e.g., to implement policies and procedures that are trauma-informed, client-
centered or to better coordinate referrals between the CoC’s coordinated entry and the
victim service providers coordinated entry system where they are different):
 CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC

Application.
 Need for the Project. Up to 50 points based on the extent to which the CoC

demonstrates the need for a coordinated entry system that better meets the
needs of survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, 
and how the project will fill this need.

 Only one SSO-CE project can be submitted per CoC; however, there is no limit on the
number of PH-RRH and Joint TH and PH-RRH projects provided that each application is for
at least $50,000.

 A project applicant may also apply to expand an existing renewal project, including one
that was previously awarded with DV Bonus funding; however, only the new project
application for the expansion will be considered for DV Bonus funds through this process.

Opportunities and Flexibilities for Projects 
 Expansion Projects:

 HUD will allow project applicants to apply for a new expansion project through
reallocation, CoC Bonus, and DV Bonus processes to expand existing projects that will
increase the number of units, persons served, services provided to existing program
participants, or to add additional activities to HMIS and SSO-Coordinated Entry projects.

 Consolidation Project: Applicants intending to use the consolidation process to combine two or
more (but no more than ten) eligible renewal projects (e.g., permanent housing-permanent
supportive housing projects) may do so through the renewal project application and must ensure:
 Budget Line Items (BLIs) for the consolidated project application submitted exactly match

the sum of the BLIs for each of the individual projects as they appear on the GIW located
on HUD's website, or grant agreement as amended,

 Inclusion of the expiring grant numbers with operating start and end dates for the projects
that are consolidating,

 Current operating end dates must end in calendar year 2022, and
 Are in good standing with HUD

 Transition Grant: A grant to fund a new project to transition an eligible renewal project being
eliminated through reallocation from one program component to another eligible new component
over a 1-year period. The new transition project must meet the following requirements:
 No more than 50 percent of each transition grant may be used for costs of eligible activities 

of the program component originally funded,
 Transition grants in this Competition are eligible for renewal in subsequent fiscal years for

eligible activities of the new component,
 To be eligible to receive a transition grant, the current recipient must have the consent of

its CoC, and
 The new project application must meet project eligibility and project quality thresholds

established by HUD.

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 14



eSnaps Application Guidance 
 Project applications must be completed by new and renewal project applicants for to include the

population(s) and subpopulation(s) they will serve, the type of housing and services that will be
provided, and the budget activities that are being requested.
 Returning project applicants: can choose to import the FY 2019 renewal project application

responses; however, this must be requested during your registration of the Renewal Funding
Opportunity in e-snaps and is only available if you submitted a renewal project application in
the FY 2019 CoC Program Competition. For further information please see FY 2021 CoC
Renewal Project Application Detailed Instructions (hud.gov).

 First-time renewal projects: must complete the entire renewal project application, including
any first-time renewal projects awarded funds under the FY 2020 CoC Program Non-
competitive Funding Notice. For further information please see FY 2021 CoC Renewal Project
Application Detailed Instructions (hud.gov).

 New project applications: must be completed in full and in accordance with the new project
application components permitted in this year’s Competition. For detailed information please
see FY 2021 CoC New Application Detailed Instructions (hud.gov).

 All project applications must be submitted to the Orange County Continuum of Care via eSnaps at
Grantium™ (hud.gov) by October 15, 2021.

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 15

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-Renewal-Project-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-New-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2021-New-Application-Detailed-Instructions.pdf
https://esnaps.hud.gov/grantium/frontOffice.jsf
https://esnaps.hud.gov/grantium/frontOffice.jsf


Item 2. Attachment B 

Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 COC Program NOFO 

I. Release of Joint Agency Administrative Review and Renewal Project Application
a. Agency Administrative Review – The general purpose is to assess agency’s capacity to

administer Continuum of Care (CoC) homeless projects while complying with the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requirements.

b. Renewal Project Application – The general purpose is to support in an evaluation of the project
description and performance. Renewal projects must meet minimum project eligibility,
capacity, timeliness, and performance standards identified in the FY2021 COC Program Notice
of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) or the project will be rejected from consideration for funding
by HUD.

Recommendation #1: Release the Joint Agency Administrative Review and Renewal Project 
Application following the August 25, 2021, approval by the Orange County CoC Board.   

II. Combine the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and Request for Proposals (RFP) process for
Reallocation and/or Bonus Projects
In previous CoC Program NOFO cycles, the RFQ was released before the release of the CoC Program 
NOFA by HUD to allow agencies to express interest and submit needed documents to evaluate the
agency’s capacity to administer a CoC project in accordance to HUD. In order to streamline the
submittal process, the RFQ and RFP will be combined and released after the CoC NOFO Ad Hoc
establishes funding priorities, including subpopulation focus, if any, and our project types. These
funding priorities will be presented to the Orange County CoC Board for approval at a special
meeting.

Recommendation #2: Combine the RFP and RFQ process for Reallocation and/or Bonus Projects
and release after the release of the NOFA.

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 16



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 3 

 

Date: August 25, 2021 

Subject: Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) Committee Recommendations 

Recommended Action:  

a. Receive and file the CoC Needs Assessment Overview  
b. Approve the creation of an Ad Hoc that explores the request to establish a data-sharing 

mechanism between Outreach Grid and the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 
and return with a recommendation to the PPS Committee 

 
Background: 

a. CoC Needs Assessment Overview 
The Office of Care Coordination acting as the Collaborative Applicant for the Orange County Continuum of 
Care (CoC) contracted with MDG Associates to support the administrative function related completing a 
CoC Needs Assessment. The CoC Needs Assessment was equity-focused and informed by a quantitative 
and qualitative data collected through the process.  

The Office of Care Coordination along with MDG Associates provided a presentation at the Policies, 
Procedures and Standards (PPS) Committee on April 13, 2021, to provide an overview of the scope and 
activities to be carried out in support of the CoC Needs Assessment and inform Continuum of Care partners 
and stakeholders who may be interested in participating in the process. On August 10, 2021, a follow up 
presentation was provided to the PPS Committee providing an overview of the methodology, findings and 
recommendations.  

These presentation materials and the recording of the presentation can be found here: 
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/about-hca/directors-office/office-care-coordination/homeless-
services/continuum-care/continuum-care  

b. Approve the creation of an Ad Hoc that explores the request to establish a data-sharing 
mechanism between Outreach Grid and the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 
and return with a recommendation to the PPS Committee. 

During the August 10, 2021, meeting of the PPS Committee, the North Orange County Safety Task Force 
provided a presentation and overview of their efforts in the North Service Planning Area around addressing 
homelessness. The North Orange County Safety Task Force also highlighted the utilization of Outreach Grid 
and how this technology solution has supported in coordination of services of those experiencing 
homelessness and making referrals into emergency shelter programs with open beds.  

A representative from Outreach Grid also provided a presentation and overview of the technology solution. 
The representative also introduced a request from the North Orange County Safety Task Force to explore 
a data-sharing mechanism, between Outreach Grid and the HMIS. This would allow the North Orange 
County Safety Task Force to streamline workflows, eliminate double data-entry and work, and support 
faster delivery of homeless services to those experiencing homelessness.  

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 17

https://www.ochealthinfo.com/about-hca/directors-office/office-care-coordination/homeless-services/continuum-care/continuum-care
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/about-hca/directors-office/office-care-coordination/homeless-services/continuum-care/continuum-care
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/about-hca/directors-office/office-care-coordination/homeless-services/continuum-care/continuum-care


The presentation materials for the North Orange County Safety Task force and Outreach Grid can be 
found here: https://www.ochealthinfo.com/sites/hca/files/2021-
08/8.10.21%20PPS%20Combined%20Presentations.pdf  

The PPS Committee approved the recommendation to create of an Ad Hoc comprised of PPS Committee 
members and members of the CoC Board to explore the request to establish a data-sharing mechanism 
between Outreach Grid and HMIS and return with a recommendation to the PPS Committee. 

Analysis: 

a. CoC Needs Assessment Overview 
Receiving and filing the CoC Needs Assessment provides the Orange County CoC Board with an overview 
of the next steps the Office of Care Coordination will be looking to take and implement to best improve the 
Orange County CoC. The Office of Care Coordination is committed to continuously engaging in needs 
assessment processes that collect the input of people most impacted by the homeless service system - 
those experiencing homelessness - as well as staff teams on the frontline serving as case managers and 
advocates and other stakeholders with various levels of engagement with the homeless service system. 

b.  Approve the creation of an Ad Hoc that explores the request to establish a data-sharing 
mechanism between Outreach Grid and the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 
and return with a recommendation to the PPS Committee. 

Approving the creation of an Ad Hoc that explores the request to establish a data-sharing mechanism 
between Outreach Grid and HMIS will provide the Orange County CoC an opportunity to learn more about 
the potential impacts, benefits and challenges in pursuing this. The Ad Hoc will be provided with an 
opportunity for in-depth conversation and research with the purpose of understanding what this could 
potentially entail and what would need to be accomplish in order to ensure that any data-sharing is in 
accordance with federal and state regulations, and also continues to protect the data information of those 
experiencing homelessness in Orange County.  

The Ad Hoc would be coordinating and updating the PPS Committee in its progress in evaluating the request 
and would present a recommendation to the PPS Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CoC Board Agenda Pkt. Pg. 18

https://www.ochealthinfo.com/sites/hca/files/2021-08/8.10.21%20PPS%20Combined%20Presentations.pdf
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/sites/hca/files/2021-08/8.10.21%20PPS%20Combined%20Presentations.pdf
https://www.ochealthinfo.com/sites/hca/files/2021-08/8.10.21%20PPS%20Combined%20Presentations.pdf

	August 25 2021 - CoC Board Meeting Agenda
	Board Members
	Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana
	Albert Ramirez, City of Anaheim

	July 28 2021 - CoC Board Meeting Minutes - Final
	Board Members
	Judson Brown, City of Santa Ana
	Albert Ramirez, City of Anaheim

	CoC Board Meeting - Supportive Documents - August 2021
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 2
	Background:
	Attachments

	Notice of Funding Opportunity for Fiscal Year 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition Overview
	Overview
	Changes from Previous Notice of Funding Opportunities
	HUD Funding Process – Application Review and Ranking Process
	Opportunities for New Funding
	Opportunities and Flexibilities for Projects
	eSnaps Application Guidance

	Renewal and New Project Process for the FY2021 COC Program NOFO
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 3
	Background:
	Analysis:





